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Mr. Specht: You were describing the rifle range in the basement
of the Arts building.

Dr. Shrum: Well, Col. Letson was a very fine rifle shot. Fe'd
been on the Bisley Team many times and he was one of the
best shots in Canada so naturally he wanted to encourage this
in the C.0.7.C. So, we hullt a rifle range under what vyou'd
call the South end of the 2Arts building, that wing. It was a
very fine rifle range bhut unfortunately the target area was
ricght under the Dean of Women's office.....and some of the
other professors were over in that wing. That'e where the
offices were, on that side of the building. They were very worried

for fear some of the shots would get through but we put a steel

n which the

E""

nlate under thera., Of course from the pesition
rifles were held, the bullet might have pierced the steel nlate
but it wouldn't at a glancing anagle. In any case, that was just
one of the little problems.

Mr, Specht: Then you had your pnarades and drills in the Beatty
Street rrmouries, 1s that richt?

Dr. Shrum: There were all in the Reatty Street Armouries because

I don't think the Seaforth Armouries was built at that time so

that ve uzed the Deatty Street armouries, Col., Letson had some

Yr. fpecht: UYov was the response of the local military command
in the Vancouver area and the militia? nid vou have a co-over-
ative relationship =with them?

Dr. Shrum: Oh, a verv co-onerative one with the militia here.

This was in khe very early dava., Of course the militarv head-
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gquarters were in Esquimalt and the different commanding officers
ovar there were very helpful and co-operative all the way through.
Mr, Specht: Who provided the instructors for the officer's

traiﬁing?

Dr. Shrum: Well, the first instructor we had was Capt. Gibson.
He was quite a good instructor but then he was followed by a
fellow by the name of Staff Sgt. Smith., This fellow was just
out of this world as far as an instructor is concerned. He had
very little sducation, very little but he had very high ideals,
he was hard working. He used to have his office in this basement
and it waan't a basement, it was underground of the Arts build-
ing. e had a little arrangement there where the members of
the corps, in one of the instruction rooms we had...they could
use it for a lunch room. Staff Sgt. Smith, sometimes he'd go
out in that lunch room and he said, "Lock you boys, I have no
education but I wouldn't dirty my mouth with some of the language
that's going on cut here! And you can't be members of this
corps if you're going to use language like that! Get out!*

But he was the one who kept them working and won the prizes for
us in the competition. FHe was not only a good shot too but he
supervised that and on the Certificate 'A' and Certificate 'B’
examinations he was a tremendous instructor. Then when the war
broke out and we had it he said, "I'm not going to stay in this
funkhole during the war." 8o he headed Zast. Poor fellow never
qot. farther that Saskatoon I don't think. He became a Major
and I think they ratained him there as instructor. He was just

too good. (laughs) He was 80 anxious to get into the war.
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Then we were sent a number of instructors here, by the military.
But you see, immediately they made it compulsory to be a student
in the university you had to be in good standing in the Officer
Training Corps. So that gives us about 1800 students, Some

of these people weren't at all interested in military training.
Different from the old days when you only had thirty or forty
vho were very enthusiastic and willing to face all this
opposition in oxrder to train and set a good example and do
nothing to bring any discredit on the C.0.7T.C. Here we had 1800
students, you see and no student officers to speak of. The
students that we had had enlisted and were gone. But by this
time the cadets were pretty active in the schools and I found
that some of these cadet N.C.0.s and so on were quite good.

They seemed to be mostly freshmen so I enrolled many of these
cadets stripes and they took charge of a great deal of the
1nstruction. They helped and we had some officers but it was

a very difficult undertaking. Then of course, we had a large
group of these people who said, "We're not going to waive our
pay.” They had the feeling, why should we waive our pay?

Well, my attitude was that the boys who had been in thera before
waived their pay and they were taking their training voluntarily.
These people had to take their training in order to stay in

the university. But you can't force a man to waive his pay
because he hag to sign. So what we did was that we only had an
establishment for 1200, That was the establishment but we had
to train evervbody. We had to train 1800, So we had to train
1800 with whatever funds and staff were provided for 1200, So

when it came to pay, there were only 1200 would get paid. So,



2"1’ P 4

we lined them up and we had two registers for them to sign.
Wa'd say to the fellow, "Do you want to waive your pay or not?”
Well, he doesn't want to waive his pay. Alright, he goes in
that line. If he's willing to waive his pay, he goes in this
line. Well only the pecple in this line got pay. The ones in
the other line were super numera there was no pay for them...
(laughs)...They didn't have to waive anything, do you see?

Mr. Speckt: nid you get 1200 out of 1800 to waive their pay?

Dr. Shrum: Oh yes. We had no trouble. 2nd after we once es-
tablished it, we never had any problem....real problem. I think
thease people thought this was quite a good stunt....that they
refused to waive their pay and signed the pay sheet for which
there was no pay. We never had any trouble after that.

Mr. Specht: Who paid? The Department of National Nefence?

Dr. Shrum: Yes,

Mr. Specht: And administered by the local headquarters?

Dr., Shrum: Well it was a standard arrangement for it. But then
the money came to us, you see? %hen the pay was waived, we had
this and we built the armouries. Then we set up these trust
funds. There are two trust funds at the University now, one

for the Navy. The Navy always wants to be a little different.
And the other one for the C.0.T.C.

Mr. Specht: Well you were an officer right from the beginning,
1928. You were a Captain of one of the two companies.

Dr. Shrum: That's right.

Mr. Specht: Could you describe what your duties were, prior

to you becoming officer commanding?

Dr. Shrum: Oh well, give some lectures, not very rany. I couldn't

compete with this Staff Sgt. Smith...(chuckles). He was too
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good. But on parade, I'd always have to go down to parades at
night when the parades wera on. Then there was the inspection,
alwvays inspection every year and a great rehersal for this
inspection.

Yir. Specht: Did you give drill vourself?

Dr. Shrum: O©Oh yes. I was quite good at that because I had
been the Sergeant in this large group in Toronto, a couple of
hundred university students. They had no ¥.C.0.8. I was

one of the first N.C.0.3...s0 I did alot of training and
handling parades. I was quite good at that, I think. I had

a voice that could be heard, in any case. You know, on the
inspection...when we had the great mcb of students in the C.0.T.C.
and Senator Criesback, he was Inspector-feneral for Yestern
Canada. His headquarters was in Edmonton. He came down here
and he was inspecting everybody in all the military units and
so on and he was just really raising Hell with them. He was
supposed to be very tough. So he was coming out to U.B.C. and
everybody was nervous and so on. My spies had told me what
tricks he was up to and so I though we'd have to fight fire
with fire. One of the things he had asked these people to do
like you were on active service..and the ¥.C.0. wouldn't know
all his people and all tre history about them. Ie was their
leader. Well at U.B.C. they might have one group of students
one day and other groups another day. There was so ruch
changing around...the units were large and there was no way
they could get to know these people. So heforehand, when he
carme to the ingpection, it was at the West end of the zuditorium

building where those huts...I rean buildings...are now for ducation
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or something, I don't know what they are. In any case there
was a plot of land there we used for ingpection. After we had
gone through what we could do, march pasts and the routine for
these, then he goes along the ranks....up and down the ranks.
Then he'd étop and he'd say to the ¥.C.0., “What's this man's
name?" or "What year is he in?" and so on. So I had all the
students in the auditorium and I explained how this was done.
Now, I said, "When he comes along and he says to the Corporal
or Lance Corporal or Sergeant or whoever it may ke, 'Do vou know
the name of your people?' You tell him, 'Yes sir.' 'wWell, this
man, what is his name?' "Oh, his name is Jones. John Jones'
"What faculty is he in?' ‘'He's in Agriculture. 'What year 1is
he in?' ‘'Second year.'" 2nd I said, "You just tell it just
as if it's fact." You knew, I said, "Never stop to consider
anything. Just give him a name and a year...bang..ocang..bang.
And practice it." Those fellows went out and we had them
nracticing this. So then old Griesback came along and he
went through this very same thing. Ile'd say to the fellow, "Is
that correct?” VYou see? Well, I didn't put enough emphasis
on the response. Some of these fellows would bhe very shy and
hold back and sav...."'Yes, it's correct.” So when he Finished
the inspection he completed it and then he compliments all
the N.C.0.s and said they did a terrific job. He thcught they
could have had a little more co-operation Irom the men in the
ranks. (laughing)
a very large unit. I mean like in the 1930's before the

war it was probably compact.....everyone knows each other,



Dr. Shrum: ©h, before the war we only had 30 or 40 all together.

Some of them would change.

Mr. Specht: That's 30 or 40 in one company?

Dr. Shrum: Yes, that's right. Some of them would change

their minds and they wouldn't be very active when the
examinations come along.....We used to have a little difficulty
getting them out. The interest lagged a bit. The very beginning
13528 and '29 there was tremendous enthusiasm and then it

sort of tapered off til the war came along, you know.

Mr. Specht: How did the Depression effect the corps? Like
military spending generally was cut back, especially in 1932.
Dr., Shrum: Yes. There wasn't very much spending as far as

the Corps was concerned but I don't recall that it effected us
very much. We had such a small unit and the amount of money
involved was very small.

Mr. Specht: Did the local militia give you a lot of encouragement
as far as .....were they really interested in the officers that
you were training out there?

Dr. Shrum: They weren't. No not really really interested.

¢ As a matter of fact they would liked to have some of these
fellows enlist in their units and take their traininc downtown
rather than at C.0.T7.C. 2nd there were a few students who did
that but they couldn't get the same officer's cualificatien.

But if they grew up as a Seaforth Cadet, tley might want to stay

with the Seaforths or something like that. I think there wera

a few of these. Cenerally sneaking they co-~operated. >ut they
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weren't 100% snthusiastic about the C.0.7T.C. I think that
bacause we ware being attacked at the university, they felt
loyalty teo support us, vou know because we were actually a

part of the military organization,

YMr. Specht: Yea. What sort of feedback did vyou get...I'm sgeuk~
ing of hefore the war, as far as the quality of officers who
were commissioned in the ranks? Do you racall.....

Dr. Shrum: Well, Y don't -ecall very much but zost of these
fellows we had were extremely good because they were in there
and enthusiastic and they were selected....thirty or forty from
the male student body. The student body was amall but thers
were high percentages of malas in the university anyway. So
they were quite a select group and the ones who aétually
qualified or were rsady to qualify and stayed with it, they

were superior people., T don't know how nmany Rir Vice-Marshals..
when the war broke ocut, John Plant and Smith and Xennedy and

a nunmber of the C.0,T.C., people ended up as Alr Vice-Marshals.
Mr, Specht: 1934,'35 I think was sort of a peak of the anti-
war moverent on carpus....This would be judging from articles

in the Ubyssey and the meetings, the cormotion going on. Do

you have any memory of that? They voted to akolish the C.0.7.C.
for axample.

Dr., Shrum: Yas, We dldn't let the people bring thelr uniforms.
They couldn't come on the campus in uniforrm. Even in the militia
units, some of the militia units had to bulld quarters, Yew Yest-
minster for instance, I know built quarters in the srrouries

for people to corme and change and then go back in civilian life.
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It wasn't safe to walk home with a uniform on.

Mr. Specht: Was this the case on campus?

Dr. Shrum: I wouldn't say that it wasn't safe on the campus
but we didn't want to antagonize the students by appearing

on the campus in uniforms. They could put the uniform on and
go to the Beatty Street Drill Hall but we didn't do anything

on the campus in uniform. Even Staff Sgt. Smith, as a rule
would always be in civilian clothes on campus in the early days.

Mr, Specht: Did you have any personal encounters at that time

with.... people who were....?

Dr. Shrum: No, I had no personal encounters at all.

Mr, Epacht: How did you feel about it? Did it affect the morale
of the Corps?

Dr., Shrum: No, it just sort of knitted together a minority group,
you might say. If you wanted to maintain high morale in a
minority group....I guess, attack them by a majority, vou know.
Mr, Specht: Do you think the morale was quite good?

Dr. Shrum: Yes, excellent. They would do anything ever asked
of them, pretty well....the C.0.T.C. people. I, myself, having
been in the ranks appreciated how students felt about officers.
There were some pretty poor of ficexs in my day. So that the

one thing that I always tried to do was not to ask the men to

do anything I wasn't prepared to do myself. Thy' I had an
officer's uniform, I used to go over with them at Christmas

to the Work Point Barracks. The floors were wooden floors that
had been well oiled to keep down tha dust but I used to lie on
the floor with the men. Whatever they were going through, we'd
go through the same thing....not too much of this standing by

supervising, you know.
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My, Specht: What was it like at Work Foint? Compared to say,

U.B.C. campus?

Dr. Shrum: ©h I don't know. I enjoyed it because it was scrt
of nostalgic. They burned coal in the little stoves in the
huts and you smelled the coal smoke...it reminded me of

the First World War. ¢Smelled the same.,..(chuckles)...sort of
nostalgic, I guess.

Mr. Specht: Was your training still sort of First World

War premises? Trench warfare, massive use of infantry,

wae that sort of the basis for your.....

Dy, Shrum: ¥No, we were always trained to fight in the open...

in the Certificate 'A' examination. I don't think trench warfare
was ever mentioned in the....before World War I in training.

Then when we were training the artillery for World War I, we
never had any instructions as far as I know about building

a gun pit. We always had these horses and it was tremendously
exciting...like gecing to a fire...galloping as fast as the

horsaes could@ go and then halt. Unhitch the horses, quick release,
full action front and see how quickly you could get firing.

These were the competitions usually....which battery would be

the first one to be in action, you know. W%Well of course yocu

only do that....once in threc years. Well actually in the war

I was involved in open movement of the guns and halt and action
front..once only. The rest of the time, we'd sneak up after

11 o'clock at night by some back road and try to get the guns
into a qun pit that had keen huilt before hand. But there was

no instruction on that. TEven the infantry instruction before

World War 1IXI, the manuals hadn't bheen rewritten very much
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and so that I can't recall any instruction, tho' there mugt be
some in the old manuals, about trench warfare....even for Werld
War IY. WYe w@ré 8till manceuvring out in the open,

Mr. Specht: What do you remember of the Balls at tha Jericho
Country Club? I think they followed vour annual insvection,

Dr. Shrum: Yes, yes. Well, these were tremendous events....
(laughs)....We enjoyed them., Of course they didn't cost anything
for the boys....and they wvere very well behaved. ¥e would invite
gome of the officers from the regiments and they would come

in their scarlet and Llue uniforms and so on.....30 it was

always written up as a colourful event. I think the boys

enjoyed it, I always enjoved it.

Yr, Specht: In the 1937 issue of the annual the Totem it said
that one of the Balls of that era carried on the "noblest of
British tradition”. How would you interpret that?

Dr. Shrum: Oh, I don't know axactly what that meant. But they
were rather formal affalrs. Peorle were in uniform and they

exchanged dances with other people.

Mr, Specht: T wasn't sure how to take that. I felt that it

was an understatement of some kind maybe...?

Dr., Shrum: T den't know exactly wlat it means myself.

“r. Specht: I'm not sure vhat British Traditions they are
refarring to...ee.....real wild,.?

Pr. Shrum: Well there would be no nroblem whatscever with fellows
drinking too much or anything of that sort....never. Maybe thats
what they meant. Tormal, very well behaved and so forth., lNothing

rowdy ahbout it.
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Mr. Specht: Compare Lt.-Col. Letson's commend with Lt,-Col.,
Doctor Logan's,...?

Dr. Shrum: %ell, I rather liked Col. Letson's way of doing
things. (chuckles) It was more my way of doing _things. I'll
give vou an example. When you're in the military you expect
vour cammander, whoever he is, if he's a corporal you expect

+o be told what to do and you do it, But if he's a Lieutenant,
a Captain, a Major, whatever he is.. So 1'll give you this just
as an example. It isn't a criticism of Col. Logan. But we
were having inspection down the Beatty Street Armouries and

I said to Col. Logan, "Now, what do you want me to do?"

Because ...oh, the Colonel falls out and stands beside the
Commanding Officer and there's all this, fo I saild, "low

just what do you want me to do?" »Ind he said, "hat would you
like to do, Cordon?” You know? Well, I felt so let down
because in a military organization vou don't expect that, you see.
That's the way he ran it. 7Tt was very popular and people

liked him and everything that he did. But from a military point
of view he wasn't as decisive. YNow Col. Letson would say
baforehand. "™ow you will do so and so and that will be your
job and so on." Fverything was la!d out very concise and

with snappy orders and so on. It was more the traditional
military handling of things., TFrom that point o view he was
good. Ha had a great nurmber of connecticns too with the

senior military people both in Ottawa and in Victeria so it

may have been a little easier to gst the arrangement for camps
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and things.

¥r. Specht: You obtained a certificate in 1936 from the Military
Staff Course. This was in

Dr. Shrum: Yes, T went. Well in those days to qualify as a ma-
jor vou had to have what vou call equitation. T went to

riding aschool up here at the Police Rarracks up on 33rd., I
enjoyed that tremendously. TFor about two weeks I'd go up there
every morning and ride. ©f course I'd been in the field
artillery and had ridden horsea for three years in World War I
but I didn't have any certificate so I liked it so much that

Y took it two vears in successzion. Iven though I passed it,

I went back and took it again....nice free riding and good horses.
Then T went down and took this Military Staff Course at

and that was a very good course.

Yr., Specht: What 4id that qualify you for?

Mr, Shrum: Well T gquess it qualified re for a major or fleld
officer, I guess. 0Once you get gualifigation for a Major
there's very little further qualifigation that you nzed for

a Colonel. *adors and Lieutenant Colonels were known as field
officers, T think, I took that in order to cualify for a field
offiéer.

Mr. Specht: Did you know that you were going to he apnointed
Commanding 0€ficar?

Dr. Shruu: Yo, T Aidn't know that the war was gJoing to braak

out.
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Mr. Specht: But this was in 19372

Dr. Shrum: Well things were gatting pretty disturked in the
international situation. o, very suddenly Col. Letson

I guess he was Officer Commanding for the Duke of Connélught's
"ifles. He had the Reatty Street lrmouries. D.C.O.R.3 I think
they called themselvez. I think he became Colonel down thera
and so he had to leave the C.0,T.C. But this came on very
suddenly,

"r, @pecht: Ie was under instructions then, from his superiors

then, to take over the new post....
Dr. Shrum: ©¢h, T think he was offered it and he took it.

Mr. Svecht: Did you want at the time, to become a commanding

of ficer?

Dr, Shrum: Well, I didn't have ruch time to think about it.

I wasn't consulted. He said, "well I'm leaving and you'll
have to take over.” T don't know. I couldn't say whether

T wanted it or not. T wasn't really a keen student of military
affairs. I didn't spend a lot of time on it. liow Col. Letson
did a lot of resading and studying on this. I don't thing Col.
Logan did either. T mean, he did the job here. But I had no
ambitions to go on to a higher rank than just my association.
My interests were entirely with the university and the C.0.T.C.
I had no ambitions to go any farther than Colone”. Letson did.
2nd he went on and hecame a Ceneral in the éﬁcan& World Yar.
Mr. Specht: What was your attitude as a cormanding officer?
How did you see, for example, what would you :hink a proper

relationship between a commanding officer and his subordinates?
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Tr. Shrum: %ell !In World Yar I, T felt that I was able to

come back as a healthy individual from World Var T hecause tha
Colonel that we had was a verv streng @iscivlinarian., The
training officer we had when T first anlisted in the artillery
in World “Tar T wras a verv ztrong discirlinarian. “Then T was
fortunate to ot pﬁﬁtaﬁ to a unilt in Trance with a very strong
disciplinarian. Tor instance, our battery wouldn't be szhelled
hut other Latteries in the sare bricade, there'd he 4 tatteries
in a wrigade, we'd see them gettinc the Adavlichts knocked out
of them by shelling., Ve wouldn't be shelled. "hvy? Beocause

we had good discipline, When tho Colonel said, "Vohody nuts
his head out.” or "lobody sterns out in the davlight.* “ohody
4id. Put other naerle would bhe “oeling around and navbe go out
tehind plaving catch or something, veu Ynow, and glive away
thelr nesition., Zo I teold the studaents vhan T +ook over +ho
c.o0.T.C. and the war broke out, T said, “"You %now we don't have
any ~quirment. a2 don't Ynow vhat the “ichting 13 soing to he
like. There's very little training that T can give veu that's
useful other than good discinlire.”™ 2o T =213, "We're agoing

to have VoTYatrict discinline.” *nd we d4d....and wa had a
good wav of enforcing it too. Yo uzed ke sav if a fellow didn't

do as he waz told, we'd tur¥ Rim out of the C.N.7.C. and then

gt

ha'd Ne eallad un riaht arav, T alwava had guite a nice working
arrancem nt with Tudas Yanzon. Ye lived areund +he corfer

-

here, e was in charge of call un., T Aon't kneow
of ficial title ean, muat by this time, Dean Tirlavaen was the
Nean of Tngineering and unli¥s Dean RBrock whe had “een Tean of

"ngineering and vervy enthusiastic akout ~ilitary, Tean Pinlavson

had no usa for the military at all. He felt that all engineering



students should be exempt....that their encineering training
was more useful than their military traininc. 2nd he told the
students this! fle didn't Melp us at all, T would sav. Wall,
ie had one student who was a top student...one of his very hest
students in civil engineering. This fellow refused to take
training. I “ean we struck him off strencth, he wouldn't
turn out. %o he got called up. VWell the university used thrcugh
Dean Tinlayson, all the pull that they had hut Dean Manson held
firm and this fellow got called up and he was »ut in the
ranks. Well that was a fairly salutary lesson to the other ss
students that Dean Finlayson wasn't runninc the show as far as
the military was concerned. So we had less trouble when we

firmlyv established it. But we 4did have a few students. One

(]

of them is a judce now and a very strict judge, very severe.

#

(chuckles) “ut we used to have an arrangement. We built the
shower room. We thoucht maybe that when we built the 2Armouries
that in one corner there was a shower room. Well we 4Aidn't need
it. We didn't use it. We didn't have people workinc hard there.
So we made that into a place where a student, if lLe broke the

rules and regulaticns, we'd give him four or five dayS.......

fnd of track I
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Dr. 8hrum: Oh there were limits of course, to what we could

do in the way of discipline. According to the K.O.R., King's
Orders and Regulations, but I made our own rules. So that we'd

say, "Oh, we'll give you five days confined to barrack.” Well
we didn't have any barrack. They weren't in barracks, they
were students, But we'd say, "now you give us your time table.”
and all the spare time they had from nine o'clock in the morning
'til six o'clock at night, we'd make them sit in this room and
study. If they refused to do it then we'd strike them off
strength. All we had to do was put through an order to strike
them off strength and Judge Manson would check these orders.

If he saw a fellow stfuck off strengh well, he'd get a call,

you see. So they knew they had to do it.

Mr., Specht: Well, military service wasn't.... There wasn't con-
scription until 1944, so how could they call him up 4if he didn't
volunteer?

Dr. Shrum: Well, I know they did call them up, anyway. Conscrip-
tion didn't start 'til 19447

Mr. Specht: Well it wasn't used at least as far as I know.

Mind you, Mackenzie King, Y think in 1941 had a plebiscite to
release the government from its pledge not to use conscription.
So the government could if it wanted it. I'm not sure how this
would have fitted in., I understand he didn't really have to

use it until 1944,

Dr. Shrum: I don't kxnow. Right from 1940, it seems to me that
these students were given exemptions by attending university.

It was compulsory to take C.0.T.C. training in the university.
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My. Specht: This was a decision by the Board and the Senate,

right?

Dr. Shrum: It was a decision by the University presidents, meeting
in Hart House, I believe at the University of Toronto. I was

down to the meating and they passed a regulation there., How

what 4id they call it? The National Conference of Canadian
Universitieas, or something.....that military training would be
compulsory in the universities.

¥r, Specht: How could they enforce that? Under what...?

Dr. Shrum: Well, they couldn't enforce it other than they
agreed that it would be and each president came back, went to
his institution and said that other universities were doing it
and we're going to make it compulsory here.

¥y, Specht: And if a student objected....?

Dr. Shrum: Well, if a student objected....he couldn't stay
in the university, I think,
Mr, Specht: He was expelled from attending university then.

Dr. Shrum: You say conscription came in :when?

Mr. Specht: Well, I understand that they rarely used conscription,..

Dr. Shrum: It was a lot earlier than 1944. That was near the
end of the war!

My, Specht: I know.

Dr. Shrum: Well, I don't know but it certainly was before 1944
that Judge Manson had the deferments of people from call up.

I don't know. That would be a point worth looking at. But in
any case, this is the point about Dr. Xlinck. I don't think
he was in favour of this regulation. But if the universities

had agreed to it and he was there at the meeting, then he vas
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going to see that U.B.C, played its part in accordance with

what had been agread upon. I say he personally wasan't in favour
of it, vou know., Of course I think he appreciated that this

was a very dangerous situation with Hitler and that Canada needed
to do everything possible to stop this evil force in the world.

I think he would feel that.

Mr, Specht: Yes.

Dr. Shrum: He would dislike having to become involved in
forcing people to take military training, I think, But when
he'd once committed....there was no wavering. Hae never 4aid,.
Fe was an unusual person that way.

Mr, Specht: Did you initiate any changes when you became

Commanding Officer after lLetson?
Dr. Shrum: I don't think so.

- TN

Mr, Specht: 1937, 1938 an Army Council report listed U.B.C, as

one of the universities where 'A' and 'B' graduates certificates
were aeligible for commissions in the British Army. Do you
recall this? I wonder if it signifies that you were fully
recognized.

Dr. Shrum: Yes, I gquess I faintly recall it. Yes, that's correct.
Mr. Specht: Also in the years 1937, 1938 the training period
was extended like I think you must have added about a month
during the university term on to the actual training periocd.

I wonder why that came about at that time.

Dr. Shrum: Well, I think because of the international situ-
ation. We felt that wa were really training people for war.

Before that it was not so definite that they'd be using this
training immediately.
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Mr, Specht: Were there any other repercussions like say during

the Spanish Civil War and the re-armament of Germany, d4id you
receive instructions from the command regarding this from h

the National Defence?

Dr. Shrum: I don't think we had any. We would get intelligence
reperts. T didn't have too much time to read these because I
was still active in my university work. But I think the thing
that was most decisive was the failure of the United Nations

to curb Mussolini and his venture into Ethiopia. It became ob-
vious that the League of Nations was not going to function as
everybody had hoped. The axis between Mussolini and Hitler, it
bacame obvious that we were going to have another world war.

Mr. Specht: Did public opinion change in your favour a lot

more then in the late 30's?

Dr. Shrum: Oh yes, yes., Well the opposition to the C.0.7.C.
died ocut pretty well. There wasn't any opposition left by the
time I took over. Col. logan was the best man to command the
C.0.7T.C. when the opposition was at its peak because he wasn't

a military man in any sense. He was a mild mannered fellow.

He was so popular with everybody and he was so involved in so
many good works that they couldn't possibly attack him personally.
This was just one of his many activities at U,.B.C.

¥r. Specht: Most sort of military historians were predicting

at the time that warfare...this is regarding the army....much
more mechanized and much more technical. Did vour training
programme modify itself over the years to take that into account?
Dr, Shrum: Oh, to some extent. Slowly I would say but not very

—————————————- Y ——— s,

much. The manuals didn't change very much. It takes a long
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while, it did, to change one of the military training manuals,.
I think most of them were written after the South African War.
Mr., Spacht: Did the status of tﬁe Corps change when war broke
out? Were you still just a training corps or were you under
any military obligation?

Dr., Shrum: No.

Mr. Specht: You weren't under any military obligation.

Dr. Shrum: But we took in graduates who were not students for
training in the evening. Well, they would join the corps. They
went to camp with us and so on. We had special parades for
them in the evening....to help them qualify for commission.

Mr. Specht: I sea,

Dr. Shrum: But they veren't always graduates too. There were
one or two that we took on. We said that they had to ebe |
university graduates but there were one or two that we accepted
that weren't even university graduates.....because they couldn't
get the qualifications downtown. They didn't have <the staff.
They didn't have the manuals. They didn‘'t seem to know how to
go about it..training people for the officer's qualification.
Mr, Specht: There was an interesting turn of events, this was
in September 1939, the Canadian General Staff stated that
enlistees in the C. 0. T. C. should he prernared to zarve in
the forces very soon. Then a few days later, this was reported
in the 6bzssez‘thay reversed this decision saying, no, they'll
have no cbligation at all. Do you recall any of that?

Dr, Shrum: No, I don't recall it but I would say that the
first was a mistake....to suggest that they enlist the C.0.7T.C.

They were then obligated to join the service. This was never
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the intention of the C.0.T.C. I don't think so.

Mr. Specht: Now the Department of National Defence adopted a
policy encouraging students to stay in university and graduate
before they enlisted in the active services.

Dr. Shrum: That's right,

Mr. Specht: Do you know how that decision came about or why?
Dr. Shrum: Well because I think that they Eelt that this
was a war in which there would be far greater need for people
with technical training. Science didn't play much of a role
in World War I but it was very obvious in World War IXI that
not only in the military but in all the supporting services
they would need university graduates in great number.

Mr. Specht: Did U.B.C. support this point of view?

Dr. Shrum: Yes.

Mr. Specht: Did you yourself?

Dr. Shrum: Yes.

Mr. Specht: How about graduates from the Arts, did you think
it should apply to them?

Dr. Shrum: It applied to them too because they were required
in intelligence service, interpreters and there was always

a demand for them too, I think.

Mr. Specht: When there was compulsory military training, all
the students who you recruited, did they all.....were they sort
of all aiming for commissions...officer training or was it basic
soldier training?

Dr. Shrum: Well, I think some of them thought they didn't want
to be officers and they took it as basic training. One could

take basic training without taking any certificate. If you wanted
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to become an officer and qualify vou had to take extra lectures.
There was a certain basic training you had to take, mainly ten
parades and so forth and go to camp. 3But vou didn't have to
take the lectures. There were guite a number of lectures
associated with the officer training. O©h, a great number of
students didn't take it all. 1!ost of them thought the war would
be over bv the time they were out of the university anyway, I
think. €o they just took the minimum. The minimum really
involved malnly parades.

Mr. Specht: So when these students graduated they would have

had some bazic military experience?

Dr. Shrum: That's right.

YMr. Specht: Presumably they would enlist in the ranks.

Dr. Shrum: Yes, but soma of them could go into the National
regsearch Council and varicus other organizations. Everybody

wasn't required to go into the military when they graduated.

¥r. Specht; O©Oh,

Dr. Shrum: You see there were deferments for people working
on the Xational research Council. If you graduated from U.B.C.
and then you could go and work in the National Research Council
and still get deferment. 2And there were other organizations,
Polymer I suppose , it was in operation then. You could get
exemption to work for an essential war industry. I'm sure that
some went and worked at the Boeing plant down in Seattle. They
would get deferment. You wouldn't get exemption, vou'd get
deferment so that if the situation changed and they did need

more people they could call them up. But they were daferad mostly

indefinitely.



2"‘2, po 8

Mr. Specht: How did the campus change during the war, vast
recruitment and how did you cope with such an influx?

Dr. Shrum: Well the thing that bothered me most...some of the
professors enlisted in the ranks in the C.0.T.C. Quite a few

of them took training. The thing that bothered me most, I used
to be embarrassed about it hecause we used to wear our uniforms
on the campus some days then, if it was a parade day. One of
these professors would come along and he'd salute me, you know.
(chuckles) There was no way to get around it, you know. I
didn't think it was proper for senior professor to salute me

on the campus but.....well it ddn't happen very often,
fortunately.

Mr. Specht: How about space for drill and accommodation....office
space, equipment? There must have been a real problem at first
to handle all this.

Dr. Shrum: Well we started to build the Armoury pretty shortly
after the war. This was quite a problem. There's an interesting
story there too because we couldn't....timber was under control,
you see and we couldn't get the timber to build the Armoury.

T went to Ottawa and the timber controler was down there. I

told him I was going to sit in his office until he agreed

to it because I said, "Don't tell me I have to go back and

tell these students. The university says that military training
is compulsory." And I said, "It rains all the time in the win-
ter out there and we have forestry as a main industry....and
you tell me we can't have a few carloads of lumber to build a
shelter for these students when they've waived their pay!" I
just laid it on the line. Eventually I got it. Then later we

wanted to put an addition on the Armoury, so I went down and
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tried the same thing again and he said, "You know Shrum, the
mistake I made was ever agreeing the first time. I guess I'll
have to let you do it a second time now.” So we had the Armoury.
We were one of the few C.0.T.C.s in Canada that had good accom-
modation. We had the beat in Canada.....best by all odds. The
best facilities, we had a very fine officer's mess, orderly room,
aeverything we needed.

Mr., Specht: The war broke out and you stated that training * will

ke more theoratical and technical than formerly." why did you
make that statement and how did......

Dr., Shrum: Well I guess we had to put in more time and since
we didn't have the military equipment to do the more practical
things we'd better do what we'd be equipped to do. So we

did a lot of work on map reading and this sort of thing where
wa could get professors who were well qualified in the field
to help., I think that was the main reason, just necessity.

We didn't have the military people and we had no military
equipment so we tried to do. We wanted to put in more time.
People wanted to prepare for the future and this was the best
way to do it, I think.

Mr., Specht: There was a serious problem of lack of instructors,

wasn't there?

Dr. Shrum: O©h ves.

¥r. Specht: Bacause they were in the active services.

Dr. Shrum: That's right. There they were needed to train the
troops that were enlisted.

Mr, Specht: Did you partly overcome this problem?

Dr. Shrum: Well asz I say we used these Junior students for



2"2 I p‘ 19

military parades because they'd had cadet training in the
schools. Some of them were very good and so we used those.

We borrowed some. Our parades were on a Saturday afternoon,
most of them, and some of the military units didn't parade on
SAturday afternoon. So we'd make arrangements for some of the
instructors to come over from town to help us.

Mr. Specht: Was the faculty on the campus co-operative and

helpful during the war?
Dr. Shrum: With one or two exceptions, ves.

Mr. Specht: Would they volunteer their time for lectures?

Dr. Shrum: Yes....and they would arrange for students to get
into sections where they could take the training. 8o yes, I
would say that the faculty was very co-operative.

Mr. Specht: How about the student body?

Dr. Shrum: Well they voted in the auditorium to waive their

pay even after the Navy came in. The Navy and I had this
meeting in the auditorium and put it up to them. I didn't think
they would but they did vote to waive their pay. So I think
that's a pretty fair indication that they were trying to be
co-operative and helpful. Now I don't say what would have happened
if they had voted not to waive their pay. I didn't (chuckles)
issue any threats or anything. If I had they wouldn't have
voted. I aprealed to them on the basis of what the money was
being used for. Some of them would say, "Well what will

happen when the war is over, what are we going to do with all
this money?" Well I said, "I'll guarantee that it'll stay at
the university. Tt'll be used here." 2nd it's still at the uni-

versity, the money. We had more than we could use.
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Mr. Specht: How about the Student War Chest and the Red Cross?

Were these quite successful?
Dr. Shrum: Y don't know very much about them,
Mr, Specht: October 1940, this is a controversy, there's an

editorial in the Ubyssey which argued that the timetables of
the C.0.T.C. be altered to accommodate applied science courses.
Either that or they should be given credit for their courses.
A meeting was held with the Science students and you attended
the meeting and you excluded the press.

Dr. Shrum: %hich?

Mr. Specht: You excluded the press from the meeting...the

Ubyssey reporters, and after the meeting the Science students
agreed that there was no conflict. T just wondered what you
sald at this meeting.

Pr. Shrum: (laughs) T don't know.

Mr. Specht: You don't remember, eh?

Pr, Shrum: I can't remember. But I was saying earlier that
Dean Finlayson wasn't whole heartedly supporting it. He felt
and maybe quite honestly, that the engineering students would
be better, they were going to be used as engineers in the war
anyway, and that they didn't need this parades and military
training and so forth. He wasn't vary co-operative in that
respect., But I can't remember the meeting.

Mr. Specht: It sounds as if you must have been quite angry

tho' if you made sure that the Ubyssey...you didn't want any
part of them at the meeting. Oh, you said they had made a
mistake in their aeditorial too. Just wonderad what....

Dr. Shrum:; I can't remenmber it.
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Mr. Specht: Was the university sensitive to criticism from the

public that students were béing privileged because of being
defered?

Dr, Shrum: There was a little bit of this but I don't think
it was very serious, There was a little bit of that but on
the whole I think that most people agreed that the sort

of war we were fighting was going to be a long war and that
we needed university trained peonle to prosecute {t. Certainly
if univeristy students went downtown I don't think they were
subject to any snide remarks or anything because they were
students in the university.

Mr., Specht: Vere there any defence measures on the campus at

the time?

Mr, Shrum: Only in connection with down whete Fort Camp

was. There was nothing I don't think. I don't think thera were
any military restrictions on the campus. There were, ves, in
the Chemistry Pepartment they had some rooms that were double
locked and 30 on. They claimed they were doing war rasearch
and there was some restriction on these but it didn't amount

to very much,

Mr. Specht: How about black outs?

Dr. Shyum: We had black ocuts on University Mill here. That was
very early in the war. T had this place I had this all klacked
out. They had civil defence volunteers going around at night
to sae 1f they could see a little bit of light through the
window. Harry Yarren was very active in this. He could tell
you about that. He was very active. It used to be a bit of

a joke. We'd say, "If you don't get the lights out, Harry
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Warren will be at your door." HYe tock this very sericusly.
He had no military experience or interest but then he threw him-
self wholeheartedly into Civil Defence.

¥r, Specht: 1In the term beginning in 1942, you announced a

changae in training. "tlow most of the time will be spent on
practical training.” Do you know why do you think this change
came about? Was it because of demands for men?

Dr. Shrum: I don't know.

Mr, Specht: Were you supplied with equipment all of a sudden?

Dr. Shrum: I guess the units that were taking our people said
that they weren't capable of handling men. These university
students they needed more practical experience hecause they
were going directly into reinforcements and so on. They went
into units that were already established and I expect that
there was this suggestion that.....At first we were really
training them theoretically because they were going to take
part in various aspects of the war. But if we were going to
feed more offlcers into active service units, they had to have
more practical training. I think that was it. To handle men
and SO ON..c.e

»r, Specht: Also in 1242, that was when the university Maval
Trainiag Division started and the university rir training Plan.
How did vou f£it that into your directing military affairs on
campus? Mow 4id you co-ordinate those?

Dr. Shrum: Well this was a little difficult at the time, We
made it clear though, and I had great support from Dr. Klinck
on thig, that T d4idn't want to take over these units. If the

Mavy and the 2irforce wanted tc have units on campus, well that
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was alright but....the C.0.T.C., there would be an over-riding
authority and I would have that over-riding authority as far

as these units were concerned. But for instance they couldn't
come on the campus and say, "We will not have any rarades.®

you see? Students d4idn't like parades very much, esnecially
when it was raining, "We'll just 4o theoretical work or some-
thing."” I had the authority to say, "¥o, that vyour programme
has to be such that it doesn't embarrass in any way the C.0.T.C.
which has the masa of the students.” This was done when the
Commanding Officers were apvointed. They vere university
professors too, vou see so wa had very cordial relations. There
was nevey any problem. When they started, we were worried about
how it would be co-ordinated and there was some concern about
that. DRBut after thev were formed and they picked good people
from the university to head up these units, as a matter of fact
hoth the people they picked were C.0.T.C. officers....to head
up the Airforce and the Navy. They were officers of wine so
there was no problem., Put if they had gent somebedy on the
campus from outside it might have been different., We were

just worried that there wasn't any conflict.

Mr. Specht: Did vou continue all vour duties as the head of

the Phvsics department?

Dr. Shrum: Yes,

¥r, Specht: You never slackened off on anything hecause of your
responsibilities?

Dr. Shrum: Mo, T wes Head of the Physics Department and Director
of the Extension Department.

Mr. Specht: You must have been extremely busy then.
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Dr. Shrum: Yes,
Mr. Specht: Do you think that the officers training that the

men underwent on campus, do you think this equipped them well
for service abroad?

Dr. Shrum: The training we got here?

Mr, Specht: Yes.

Dr. Shrum: Oh I think it was just a start. They certainly

wouldn't be equipped to go into active service but they
would have some basic training. They would have to have some
further traininq_for an officer. They couldn't go from the
C.0.7.C. into a unit in France, directly.

Mr., Specht: Where would an officer go once he left U.B.C. and

enlisted? Would he go to another Royal Academy or to a special
training.....
Dr. Shrum: He'd go to a special officer's Training achool.

Mr, Specht: What sort of feedback did you get? Did you get

any of your recruits or officers who had trained in C.0.T.C.
writing you letters during the war?

Dr. Shrum: Oh yes. I had one fellow, he wrote toc his mother
and his mother sent me the letter. He says, "You know when I
was at the C.0.T.C." Mo, he said, “"The conditions over here
are very hard, frightening, the shells and so forth." But he
said, "You know I don't think that even overseas I've evsar
been quite so firghtened as I was with Col. Shrum in the C.0.T.C."
(laughs) So I think the discipline worked pretty well. The
C.0.T.C. people distinguished themselves but I think that they
would have distinguished themselves anyway because they were

superior peopla. It wasn't the training they had. I guess the
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only V.C. from U.B.C. was a chap that went into the Naval
Service. Fe'd been in the C.0.T.C. Then there was another fellow
who had a tremendous record....medals, I can't think of

his name now...from Vancouver Island. He was one of these young
sergeants in his first year in the C.0.T.C. BRBut this was because
they were superior persons. I don't think that the training...
the discipline was the most valuable part of the training because
it's very difficult for a person to go from civilian life into

an officer training school. Immediately you're subjected to

this intense military discipline. 1If you start to fight it

and resent it then you're really in difficulties. So I think
that the indoctrination to discipline was a great help to

these people to go on in their military service.

Mr. Specht: Qamps were set up in Naniamo, for summer training.

There was a comment in the annual that thls wag much more

rough than cut at U.B.C. I wonder...this was set up as kind

of a transition before action....

Pr. Shrum: Well, when they were in camp we treated them just

as if they were on active service. »Mbsolutely. There were other
units on active service right adjacent to us...all round us.

Our boys were roquired to behave just as if they were on active
service....when they were in camp. o fooling around! All the
spit and polish and everything else. The wet weather and the
mad and the rain! They were in tents too and that wasn't very
comfortable., See we went to camp usually the last week in ?pril
and the first week in May and in Manaime that isn't always balmy
weather. "e also went to Vernon. T went two years to MNanaimo,

one up at Courtenay, and two years in Vernon, I believe. 2nd
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I was ona vear up in Chilliwack.

End of track II



